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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2022

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the charitable
company for the period ending 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’ report and
a directors’ report under company law.

The Trust currently operates 2 special schools. One is primary (ages 4-11 years) and the other is secondary (ages 11
to 19 years). The total number of pupils in these schools is 369 in 2021/2022. However it should be noted that the pupil
numbers in both these schools is expected to rise to over the next few years.

In addition the Trust also operates a SEND Qutreach service which provides support to all schools in the Borough of
Bolton. The current caseload for this service is over 1300 pupils {aged 2 — 19 years). This service is commissioned by
the Local Authority on a Service Level agreement.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s memorandum and
articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy Trust as incorporated on 25 August 2018.
There was no trading activity until the official formation of the academy Trust by the Department for Education on 1
October 2018. The Trustees of the Woodbridge Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes
of company law. The charitable company is known as Woodbridge Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 2.
Members Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities
There are no third party indemnity provisions
Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The company Articles of Association provide that Foundation Members will appoint no fewer than & Trustees (Article
50), however they are not to be subject to any maximum. Trustees are appointed for a term of 4 years and subject to
remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee any Trustee may be re-appointed or re-elected at a general meeting.

The Articles allow parent Trustee representation and the structure of Woodbridge Trust is such that each school in the
Trust operates with a Quality of Education Committee.

Practically when seeking new appointments, Trustees are assessed initially by invitation, dependent on their expertise,
experience and skills, prior to a process of recruitment and appointment in which rigorous interview selection, collection
of references and checks through the DBS system are all coliated.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and training of Trustees

New Trustees are interviewed and selected for the board to maintain robust governance and oversight throughout the
Trust. On all occasions, Trustees are fully inducted into the business of the Trust to provide a clear understanding of
their role and responsibilities as a Trustee along with the understanding of detailed policies and procedures underpinning
the Trusts governance arrangements. Trustees are provided with appropriate training opportunities and regular skills
audits are undertaken to ensure a breadth and balance of expertise is available to the Board.

Organisational Structure

The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, the strategic direction and the growth of the Trust, adopting an
annual plan and budget, monitoring the Trust and its schools by the use of financial management and other performance
information, making appointments to the Executive Leadership Team and presenting the Annual report and Financial
Statements for approval by the Members.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) is the Accounting Officer. Operational management of the Trust is delegated to the
Executive Leadership Team (ELT). The ELT consists of the CEO, Chief Financial Officer and Executive Head Teacher.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2022 (continued)

These managers control the Trust and Schools / Service at an executive level implementing the policies laid down by
the Trustees and reporting to them. The ELT further delegates responsibilities to the Senior Leadership team of each
School / Service.

The SLT as appropriate to each School / Service, consists of the Head of School, Deputy Head teacher, and Assistant
Head teachers. The SLT is responsible for the authorisation of spending within delegated and agreed budgets including
the appointment of staff.

Appoiniments to the ELT will always be made by a board of Trustees. Some spending control is delegated to individual
members of the ELT within agreed limits as specified in the Scheme of Delegation.

The leadership and management of the Schools / Service is carried out by the ELT, the SLT at each school /Service,
middle leaders and business support managers. These leaders are responsible for the operational business and
principal activities of the Schools / Service in the Trust, in particular organising staff, facilities and pupils.

The Trustees meet at least 4 times a year. Local Quality of Education Committees and Statutory Committees of the
Trust meet at least on a termly basis. Trustees make regular visits to schools and service they attend events and
functions and are seen as key advocates of the work of the Trust. Trustees are represented on the School Advisory
Committees alongside the wider representation these committees include.

The Scheme of Delegation clearly sets out and defines the responsibilities of Members, Trustees, School Advisory
Committees and Senior Leaders.

Arrangements sétting pay and remuneration of key management personne!l

The remuneration of the ELT, Heads of School and other Senior Leadership team members of each school / service is
set in accordance with the Trust Pay policy and the DfE pay and conditions documents for teachers and leaders.
Thorough, rigorous performance management of the executive and senior leadership personnel takes place on an
annual basis. The Trust Pay Committee for the ELT, Heads of School and other senior leaders reviews
recommendations for their pay progression and other remuneration (if appropriate). The Trust Pay committee consists
of at least 2 Trustees and the ELT,

Trade Union Facility Time

Under the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 the Woodbridge
Trust is obliged, as an employer of sufficient size, to report information included in Schedule 2 of the Regulations in
relation to

Number of FTE employees who were relevant union officials under the dafinition
Percentage time spent by relevant union officials spent on union facilities time
Percentage of paybill spent on union facilities time

Time spent on trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours.

The Trust did not employ any union officials engaged in trade union facilities time during the period ending 31* August
2022 and as such incurred no costs associated with the Trade Union Facility time for union officials employed in local
authority area within which the Trust operates. The Trust is committed to working positively with the unions that represent
the Trust employees namely NAHT, ASCL, NEU, NASUWT, and Unison.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Woodbridge Trust requires Trustees and others with a govemning responsibility to complete a full disclosure of interests
and other posts held. Individuals are requested annually, to review and update their interests in the registers.

The individual members and Trustees hold a variety of business interests, directorships and Trusteeships in their
organisations including other educational establishments. A full list of related party connections of the individuals can
be found on the Woodbridge Trust website.

Heather Scott a member and chair of Trustees is also a director of Woodbridge College, a post 19 establishment for
young adults with special educational needs, along with Sally McFarlane (CEOQ) and Jennifer Moore (CFO / Finance
Director).

Engagement with Employees (including disabled persons)

As a Trust we aim to listen to the views of and provide clear information to employees, being honest and transparent at
all times. The Trust continually commits time and effort to engage with employees at all levels of the organisation and
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2022 (continued)

in every setting. The Executive Leadership Team and Academy Leadership Teams meet forinightly, information from
such meetings permeate throughout the organisation from Head Teachers, School Senior Leadership Teams, Middie
Leaders and beyond.

The Trust has returned to Face-to-face meetings and at least weekly staff meetings are held in all settings.

The Trust regularly seeks feedback from employees through various methods — Annual staff questionnaire, feedback
forms for all training days, Peer supervision in place for Assistant heads across the Trust, termly peer reviews. In
addition, the Trust also set up working parties to look at the specific areas of “Reward and Recognition® and “Trust
Engagement” throughout the year ending 31 August 2022, the outcomes of which will influence the Workforce strategy.

The Trust complies with the Equalities Act 2010 in such that a person would not be disadvantaged or discriminated
against due to disability. Reasonable adjustments are considered when an applicant makes it known during recruitment
that they have a disability. The Trust has a signed up to an Employee Assistance Program which entitles all staff and
indeed their families to a 24hr hotline should they have any issues, this is completely confidential and through which
staff can access counselling. In addition the use of professional occupational health assessments is used to gain
professional guidance should any adjustments to the working environment be required.

Engagement with Suppliers, Customers and Others in a Business Relationship with the Trust

Working closely with our key suppliers and partners to ensure a common goal in providing the best possible environment
for all pupils to thrive and achieve their full potential. The trust recognises the key role played by our suppliers in the
delivery of our objectives and has worked with the Trusts executive and senior managers to ensure the flow of crucial
resources for the delivery of education. Due to the nature of the settings within the Trust pupils attend from throughout
the borough. Each school has links within the community and surrounding neighbourhoods which provide mutual
benefits for both our pupils and the community within which they engage.

Objectives and Activities
Objects and Aims

The principal objective and activity of the charitable company is the operation of schools and Outreach Service to provide
high quality education for pupils aged 2 — 19 years with a range of special educational needs. The Trust’s mission is to
provide high quality education for students from 4 — 19 years of age with complex, severe or profound learning difficulties
and, or autistic spectrum disorder. We aspire for all our students to make as much progress as possible, our overarching
vision is “inspiring future success for all*.

Our work over the last 12 months has contributed to focus on the quality of education offered in all our settings, with
careful scrutiny of the finances needed to support this. Together with the ELT, we have reviewed our meeting formats
with the aim of becoming more efficient whilst ensuring high levels of accountability remain at the core.

During the year our focus in meetings has been to ensure high levels of trustee participation with more opportunities for
discussion and debate alongside completing the necessary business. We believe that this has increased trustees
knowledge and supported our ability to effectively hold the Executive leaders to account. Our Trust Board scrutinises
the information provided at all meetings, together with the detailed discussions within statutory committees (Finance,
Buildings and HR, Audit committee) in addition to the school based committees which focus on the quality of teaching
and learning and pupil outcomes. The Trust employs a Clerk to record our statutory meetings and to support us with
guidance and advice as appropriate.

Objectives, strategies and activities

The Trustees are pleased to report that the main objectives of the Trust during the period ending 31st August 2022 have
been achieved, a summary of which is shown below.

+« We have continued to work collaboratively with our CEO and are aligned to the vision we all share for the future
direction of Woodbridge Trust.

» Qur schools and service continue in their pursuit of raising standards and achievement for all, the monitoring
and evaluation of pupil progress continued with the same rigour despite the pandemic.

e Trust Board strategic plan evaluated and impact measured, developing further the strategic plan through to
2024 and beyond.

e The expansion programme at Firwood in partnership with the LA to provide 6 additional classrooms has been
completed and occupied from May 2022.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees Report for the year ending 31 August 2022 (continued)

Successful, comprehensive procurement process for the Outreach Service, the contract has been awarded from
September 2022, securing the future of the service

» Further develop the Outreach traded services both in Bolton and neighbouring authorities.

Fully implement the Trust School Improvement Strategy to ensure continuous improvement of the Quality of

Provision. This includes the gathering and analysis of appropriate data.

Development of a collaborative peer review system across the Trust.

Continue to evaluate and modify our risk management documents and procedures to ensure they are current.

Ensuring as a Trust we are fully compliant with all statutory and regulatory requirements and returns.

Ensuring our main aim ..."inspiring successful futures for all” is at the core of all we do.

Successful CIF bids have been sought and work completed to address security concerns around the premises.

Working closely with Bolton LA in addressing the increasing school place demand in Ladywood, addressing

the accommodation pressures. A comprehensive feasibility and plans have been submitted to Bolton LA.

* We have been watchful and taken strategic action with regards to the Green and White Paper, ensuring
Trustees are fully aware.

* Reviewed the Executive Leadership Team in light of succession planning

e & » = & ®

Public Benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with their duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due regard
to public benefit guidance published by the charity Commission for England and Wales. The Trustees have referred to
the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit when reviewing the Trusts objectives in planning future
activities for the year. The Trust ensures that the schools / service continue to be at the heart of the community,
promoting community cohesion and sharing facilities with other schools and the community (as appropriate)

Strategic Report
CcOVID 19

As with all schools the COVID 19 pandemic continued to present our schools with many significant challenges
throughout the year.

In school there are a range of measures in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of all. When positive cases have
been identified there are swift and effective measures immediately implemented to reduce the risk to others. The
ongoing risk assessments are crucial in managing the pandemic and are kept under constant review.

Whilst the schools remained open, they have continued to be impacted by staff and student absences. On a termly
basis Trustees were presented with the impact costs associated with COVID 18, including the staffing implications and
associated costs as a result of staff absence. This was discussed in detail in the Finance, HR and Resources committee
and again at the full Trust Board meetings. Trustees also maintained an overview of school and service risk assessments
and quality of provision throughout the pandemic.

During the year the Academies received £34k in additional COVID 19 funding was received which is in relation the
recovery premium, details of planned expenditure including the Intent, implementation and the expected Impact for all
students is shown on the individual school websites. In addition the schools received £9k worth of Student devices from
the DF E during the year.

Achievement and Performance

The Trust has numerous ways of measuring achievement and performance, including financial and non-financial
indicators. The Trust also undertakes self-evaluation in key areas on an ongoing process to ensure that all areas of the
Trust are fulfilling the mission in achieving the best possible outcomes for all students. As well as utilising services within
the Trust, external experts are also engaged to provide scrutiny and review in areas such as School Improvement,
Responsible Officer work and Health and Safety to name a few.

Key performance indicators

Ladywood and Firwood Schools are both popular and significantly oversubscribed. The pupil numbers in both schools
have risen from September 2022 and continue to be in high demand. Overall numbers currently stand at 193 Ladywood
and 200 Firwood.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2022 (continued)

We actively seek regular and detailed feedback from all stakeholders. Parents are particularly very positive and pupils
report that they are both happy and safe at school. Both Ladywood and Firwood have strong links with parents and the
positive ethos within the scheols allows our children and young adults to thrive and have a desire to come to school.
Teaching and Leaming is positive and engaging for all pupils.

Since conversion there has been no Ofsted inspections. Currently Ladywood School is judged Outstanding (January
2016) Firwood is judged Good (January 2018)

Attendance is very closely monitored and for the purposes of this report we have calculated attendance data for the
period September 2021 to July 2022. The attendance for the year 2021/22 was 92% Ladywood and 87.1% Firwood
which includes students with parttime placements (90% with fulltime placements}. Attendance at Firwood has improved
since the previous academic year and a Safeguarding Officer has been employed to support families further to increase
attendance of all students. Overall attendance figures are in line with special schools nationally.

Pupil achievement is rigorously monitored and evaluated in all our schools.

The nature of our pupil needs means that typical attainment at the end of Key stages and in GCSE examinations is not
appropriate. However, we benchmark our achievements against other special schools, our own historical data and
external accreditations that are suitable for pupils to access.

Ladywood

Ladywood's curriculum provides pupils with opportunities to ignite curiosity and learn essential life skills, including
communication, social skills and vocational skills, thus supporting them to fully celebrate all achievements, have
aspirational goals and achieve their full potential as children in the community.

Progress at Ladywood School is on the whole Outstanding. EYFS Teacher assessment shows Good or Outstanding
progress in all areas, with 1 pupil meeting Early Learning Goals in Literacy. Key Stage 1 and 2 point progress across all
subjects is for the most part Outstanding. Pupils on average made 3 points progress in English and Maths and 4 points
in Science. At Ladywood approximately 10% of the cohort are able to access the Phonics Screening and in 2022 2%
met the National Threshold (1 pupil).

Target setting is an intrinsic part of the Ladywood Assessment Calendar. Targets are set at the end of the summer term
for current pupils or within the first half term of a pupil starting at Ladywood. Targets are reviewed at two points in the
assessment calendar and form a key point of discussion within Pupil Progress Meetings.

91% of children met / exceeded target in English — Reading
90% of children met / exceeded target in English - Writing
88% of children met / exceeded target in Maths — Number
93% of children met / exceeded target in Maths — SSM

Cohort analysis of pupil progress across all key groups shows little differential

Firwood

Firwood'’s curriculum has been developed to meet the needs of all students and continues to evolve to provide enticing,
enriching and engaging learning for all abilities and phases of students. There are robust target setting, monitoring and
assessment processes in place which focus on individual pupils needs. At the core of the drive for individual pupil
achievement is the culture of high aspirations for all our pupils to achieve the very best they can with a strong focus on
preparation for future life. Data is analysed forensically so that next steps in learning can be identified for each pupil.
The capturing of data which reflects progress in non-academic subjects is also crucial for our pupils. We particularly
focus on PSHE, independence and the acquisition of life skills. Pupil progress has improved in all areas in 2021/2022.

72% of students made Good or Outstanding progress in English
71% of students made Good or Outstanding progress in Maths

Children Looked After (CLA) students are also making outstanding progress in both Maths and English, with 80% making
good or outstanding progress.

PLMD students are making good or outstanding progress in different strands of English with 66%, with 68% of students
making expected or above in Maths.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2022 (continued)

Firwood has a number of extremely medically vulnerable students and continue to develop our Home Reach offer
providing educational opportunities for students who are unable to attend school. The provision for students with
complex medical needs in school continues to be developed and two rooms were specially designed and decorated to
be conducive to a range of high quality teaching and learning experiences.

A new assessment process, MAPP, was successfully trialled across KS5 with all students making expected or exceeded
progress in their bespoke targets. The MAPP assessment will now be introduced across school to be used by all phases
of students. During the year 8 students successfully passed their Bronze Duke of Edinburgh qualification completing all
aspects of the course. 53 students across the 6th form were entered into a range of accreditation options including
ASDAN Personal Progress, RSPB Wild Challenge, ASDAN horticulture and a range of AQA ‘units covering work
experience and independent learning skills. 100% of students who were entered passed all the accreditation offers.

Outreach

The Outreach Service supports pupils across all Bolton schools and nursery settings including specialist settings and
private and voluntary nurseries, catering for the needs of pupils from 2 years to 19 years supporting learners across a
range of special educational needs including communication and interaction needs and cognition and learning needs.

We have suitably experienced qualified and professional staff that have a range of skills and additional professional
qualifications some of which include; ASD, SpLD, Irlen Diagnostician, ADOS assessment trained, Signalong Tutor and
a staff member with MMU Fellowship of the institute of Higher Education.

During the year the Local Authority retendered the Outreach service and after a very exhaustive process the contract
was awarded once again to Woodbridge Trust. The service is measured on Key Performance Indicators and this ensures
accountability in terms of service delivery and helps service leaders in partnership with the LA to identify any gaps in
service delivery as well as promoting service improvement. Together, we have devised the quality standards and these
are returned to the Local Authority at the end of the summer term each year. This document is based on a number of
published quality standards including Quality Standards for SEN Support and Outreach Services (DCSF, 2008). We
have consistently achieved outstanding or good in all areas. Within our offer, we monitor 744 EHCP and provide
feedback to the local authority. Last year we facilitated 98% post diagnostic meeting for children who attend schools in
Bolton BSCIP pathway as part of our offer. Over this period the service has continued to develop a regional profile with
services now being offered to several local authorities and to the independent school sector.

In 2021 we organised SENDi a regional conference to celebrate inclusion and innovative practice. We organised
internationally known speakers including; Mel Ainscow, Barry Carpenter, Neil McKay and OFSTED - Chris Pollitt. The
event was well attended with over 200 delegates and had been so successful we are now in the process of organising
SENDi2 which will have a social emotional learing focus.

We applied to Irlen USA for the licence to become Ien Centre North West and in September 2022 we were successful
and were granted the contract to become Irlen Diagnosticians. This means that children, families including adults in the
region will be able to get a diagnosis and lenses to overcome their Irlen differences rather than travelling many miles
away. We have started a comprehensive training offer that is advertised locally, nationally and internationally to build
capacity for a range of stakeholders to train further Iren assessors and help provide vital support and understanding in
the settings we support.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the academy Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can
be found in the Statement of Accounting Policy

Promoting the success of the company

In promoting the success of the Trust and to ensure the longevity of the Trust and the continuing provision of high
quality education to all of our students both now and in future we ensure that with any decision the following are
reviewed;

+ The consequences of any decision in the long term

» The impact of any decision on the company's employees
» The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2022 (continued)

e The impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment
¢ The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct
e The need to act fairly as between members of the company

Financial Review

Most of the Trust’s income is derived from two separate sources. Firstly in the form of the recurrent grants, predominantly
based on pupil numbers, from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), the use of these grants is restricted to
particular purposes. Secondly in the form of High Needs top up funding from the Local Authority (Bolton Council), which
is specific to the individual needs of the students on role at any given time. The grants and high needs funding received
in the period ending 31 August 2022 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

The Trust also received grants in the form of additional high needs funding from the Local Authority for the provision of
the Qutreach service to mainstream Bolton schools and nurseries.

During the period ended 31 August 2022, total expenditure of £10,005k was incurred {which excludes depreciation of
£502k and FRS 102 service and interest costs of £1,451k}, which was more than covered by the recurrent grant funding
from the ESFA together with other incoming resources which totalled £10,366k. In addition, £127k was transferred to
restricted fixed asset fund. Total restricted funds carried forward amounted to £535k.

Unrestricted income in the period ended 31 August 2022 amounted to £488k. Unrestricted expenditure for the period
amounted to £107k. Total unrestricted funds carried forward amount to £1,196k.

At 31 August 2022 the net book value of assets amounted to £23,070,759. The cost of fixed asset additions in the period
ending 31 August 2021 amounted to £1,958k the majority of which is as a result of the & classroom extension at Firwood
which has been completed in the year. There are currently £185k of Assets Under Construction which relate directly to
a security and safeguarding CIF award, completion of these works is expected in November 2022.

Under accounting standard FRS 102, it is necessary to charge any projected deficits on the Local Government Pension
Scheme, which is provided for non-teaching staff, to the restricted fund. As at the Accounting Date, the net discount rate
has significantly increased compared to the previous year's Accounting Date. This significant increase in the discount
rate assumption coupled with a similar CPl assumption to last year has resulted in a large gain as at the Accounting
Date. In addition, more up-to-date longevity assumptions have also led to a decrease in obligation. The overall impact
of these changes since the previous Accounting Date, has been a gain of £8,190k, resulting in the pension fund showing
a deficit of £19,000, which has been carried forward.

Reserves policy
Unrestricted Reserves

Woodbridge Trust's unrestricted reserves are derived from income funds, grants or donations that can be spent at the
discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of any of the Trusts objectives.

If part of an unrestricted income fund is earmarked for a particular project it may be designated as a separate fund, but
the designation has an administrative purpose only, and does not legally restrict the Trustee's discretion to spend the
fund. Unrestricted reserves will be achieved through operational efficiencies and any trading activities undertaken by
the Trust.

Restricted Reserves

Woodbridge Trust's restricted reserves may be restricted income funds, grants or donations that are spent at the
discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of some particular aspects of the objects of the multi academy Trust; or where
the nature of expenditure has been defined by the donor; or they may be endowment funds, where the funds or assets
are required to be invested or retained for actual use, rather than spent.

Restricted reserves are only available for expenditure once the Trust has met its commitments and other planned
expenditure and is in accordance with the limitations outlined in the original funding.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2022 (continued)

Pension Reserve

The risks surrounding the Trust's pension liability are taken into consideration when calculating other reserves. The
presence of a pension surplus or deficit does not constitute an immediate liability (or realisable asset) and does not
mean that the equivalent amount is already committed and no longer available to the Trust.

The presence of a pension surplus or deficit will generally result in a cashflow effect for the Trust in the form of an
increase or decrease in employers’ pension contributions over a period of years.

The Trust continues to calculate its reserves without setting aside a designated reserve to cover the pension liability.
The total reserves held at 31 August 2022 is £25,004,483 which is made up of the following:

Unrestricted reserves £1,195,720

Restricted reserves £535,132

Fixed asset reserves £23,292,631

Restricted pension reserve (£19,000)

Investment Policy

Woodbridge Trust holds cash balances and thereby must make investment decisions. The Trust must manage the need
for working capital against tying up funds in long term options. The investment objective of the Trust is to provide income
to the Trust to help maintain its operational effectiveness in the short term. However, a total return approach will take
precedence, allowing the Trust to focus on investments providing optimal performance in terms of overall return rather

than investments which would provide the right balance of capital and income return. The protection of present and
future beneficiaries will be key responsibility of the Trust.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks to the Trust are documented and managed using a risk management policy and risk register which
is regularly reviewed. The process of risk and assurance has been developed during the year with a defined cycle
embedded across the Trust. This allows the Board to be constantly aware of the key strategic risks which affect the
Trust.

The Trust has carried out a careful review of the risks and uncertainties it faces in the coming year. In summary these
are viewed to be

e Managing the increasing demand for places at both Ladywood and Firwood Schools.

» Further developing the traded element of Ladywood Outreach Service which is reliant on the purchase of
additional services by schools in a time of cuts to school budgets.

* Ensuring the Ladywood build adheres to the expected timescales for completion late 2023 / early 2024.

+ Downgrading of the OF STED judgements on either Ladywood or Firwood Schools. Ensuring that the schools
are prepared for the any changes to the current OFSTED framework.

» Maintaining constant vigilance to ensure the health, safety and wellbeing of all pupils

Ensuring that appropriate medical staff are available to support pupils, particularly at Firwood where there are

a number of pupils with highly complex medical needs.

Increased staffing costs due to pension and inflationary rises

Increased Energy costs due to the political landscape and cost of living crisis

Recruitment and retention of high quality staff able to meet the complex needs of our pupils

Succession planning within the Trust governance and executive leadership

Conduct robust and meaningful due diligence for any school joining Woodbridge Trust

Key controls in place to mitigate these risks are

School and Service Improvement Plans including detailed curriculum review

Detailed , regular analysis of pupil achievement data

Robust self-evaluation processes across the schools and service

Monitoring of safeguarding, wellbeing and pupil safety on a regular basis and by a range of different people
including ELT, SLT and Trustees.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2022 (continued)

Frequent review of medical provision at Firwood and close relationship with health service providers

e Clear organisational structure for the Trust supported by clear policies which steer the work of the Trust.

s The development of new initiatives and wider geographical reach relating to External Partnerships and in
particular the Outreach Traded Services, to increase and sustain income.

¢ Financial planning, multiyear budgeting and regular financial reporting to the Audit Committee and Board of
Trustees highlighting areas of potential financial risk

+ Effective internal control systems that are regularly tested and monitored

s Comprehensive internal audit procedures to cover business reviews and routine health checks

e Audit committee scrutiny and challenge

+ Further development of the HR policy and the development of a Workforce Plan for the Trust to ensure
succession planning, talent spotting, recruitment and retention of staff and leadership development is as
effective as it can be.

« Maintain a close and robust relationship with the Local Authorily to enable appropriate, long term solutions to
be found to address the demand for pupil places at both Ladywood and Firwood Schools.

+ Maintain an effective working partnership with the contractor / architect to ensure a smooth and timely delivery
of the building works

¢ Continue to follow the DFE and Public Health guidance in relation to COVID 19, implementing risk assessments
as necessary

¢ Keep abreast and constantly review market changes in Utility costs, tracking cost and understand government
guidance on any capping extension and the financial impact of such

« Utilising a robust due diligence checklist, ensuring information received is analysed and interrogated by
appropriately skilled individuals

Fundraising

The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was monitored by
the Trustees

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Trust is pleased to report its current UK annual energy usage and associated greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
pursuant to the Companies (Directors’ Report} and Limited Liability Partnership (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulation
2018 (the 2018 Regulations}) that came into force 1 April 2019.

Organisational boundary

In accordance with the 2018 Regulations, the energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions are for those within
the UK only for all assets that come under an operational control boundary. This includes the 2 schools controlled during
the reporting period along with minibuses. The energy and carbon emissions are aligned to this period.

Quantification and reporting methodology

The 2019 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard (revised edition) were followed. The 2022 UK Government GHG conversion factors for company
reporting were used in emissions calculations.

The electricity, gas and minibus diesel consumption were compiled from automatic meter readings, invoices and mileage
records. Gross calorific values were used as per Government GHG Conversion Factors.

Breakdown of energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh):

Energy Type 2021/22  2020/21 % change
Gas 680,882 807,117 -15.6%
Purchased Electricity 404,100 412,410 2.0%
Transport fuel 6,000 3,000 100.0%
Biomass 266,144 235,680 12.9%
Total Energy 1,357,125 1,458,207 6.9%
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Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2022 (continued)

Intensity ratio

The primary intensity ratio is gross emissions in metric fonnes CO2e {mandatory emissions) per pupil, which is the
recommended ratio for the sector for consistency and comparability. Pupil numbers are based on the Autumn 2021
Census,

Breakdown of emissions associated with the reported energy use (tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent)

Emissions Source 2021/22 2020121 % change

Gas 124.29  147.83 -15.9%
Purchased Electricity 78.14 87.57 -10.8%
Transport fusl 1.50 0.63 138.0%
Biomass 2.80 357 -21.4%
Total Emissions 206.74 239.60 -13.7%
Intensity Ratio 0.56 1.41 -60.4%

Energy efficlency action during the financial year

Energy consumption year on year in relation to electricity has reduced slightly as a resuit of the continuing program to
replace all lights with LEDs as appropriate and the addition of PIR circuits in those areas that currently don't benefit from
such technology. Overall the gas and biomass consumption has reduced as a result of reducing the operational hours
of the boilers. In addition, at one school we had continued periods of boiler issues and therefore less energy was being
consumed whilst replacement parts and repairs were being undertaken. The significant increase in transport fuel is as
a direct result of the students being able to go out and about in the community this year compared to the previous year
which was limited by covid.

The trust is committed to reducing longer term emissions and is planning on intreducing the following from September
2022

» All schools continuing te convert to high efficiency LED lights when replacements are required
¢ Informing all staff to turn of IT equipment fully when not in use
¢ |nstallation of a pool cover

Ptans for Future Periods

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission's general guidance on public benefit’, the future objectives are;

e Work closely with Bolton LA in addressing the increasing school place demand across all age ranges and
explore opportunities for growth with a view to addressing the accommodation pressures across the Trust

e Ensure the successful planning and management of a new build extension at Ladywood to address the current
occupancy restrictions and future places needed.

« Initiate and develop a plan with the Local Authority to address the pupil pressures at Firwood by the addition of
an offsite Sixth Form
To ensure that all schools / service achieve an OFSTED judgement of at least good in future inspections

« To be watchful of the political landscape especially with regards to.... for example

= OFSTED Framework
*  Future plans for MAT inspections

¢ Continue to develop and evolve External Partnerships including the traded services and the development of the
North West Irlen centre.

» Implementing a robust recruitment and appointment process for the CEO role due to the upcoming retirement
of the current CEO

o To keep under review the executive leadership team structure and composition to work in partnership with the
new CEO for a successful transition

e  Work with the DFE to introduce another school to Woodbridge Trust including a comprehensive Due Diligence
process
Further develop Woodbridge Trusts growth strategy for the next 3 years
To prepare a rigorous due diligence procedure in the event another schoo! or the RSC approaching the Trust
in our capacity as a sponsor
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¢ To continue to strengthen governance across the Trust with recruitment and retention of high quality Trustees
and Governors with appropriate skills.

Continue to develop a Trust wide system where data is interrogated and the findings are actioned

To develop a system of acknowledgment and celebration of success for all stakeholders within our Trust
Further develop and embed Partnerships and Peer working

Develop and implement a Teaching & Learing strategy across all aspects of the Trust

Extend the opportunities across the Trust for further research and innovation development

Extend the Trusts offer to include more Therapy services beyond the statutory availability

Continue to ensure the current Keeping Children Safe in Education Policy is implemented consistently in our
practice

To continuously monitor the financial health of the Trust, especially in light of the current cost of living crisis

To further the drive for greater efficiencies and economies of scale.

Continue to evaluate and modify our risk management documents and procedures to ensure they are current
and robust.

Development and Implementation of an Asset Management Plan and 3 vear estates expansion plan

s Further development and implementation of a Workforce Plan

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

Woodbridge Trust is proud to be an Equal Opportunity employer. We give full and fair consideration to the applications
for employment made by disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitude and abilities. The Trust is
responsive to changes to an employee’s individual circumstances through becoming disabled which includes making
appropriate adjustments to working conditions. All employees of the Trust including those with a disability can expect to
be afforded development and career progression that befits their skills and expertise.

All employees of the Trust have access to a 24/7, 365 days a year independent employee assistance program which
offers confidential independent help, information and guidance on a wide range of topics. In addition, employees also
have access to a live chat opticn, where they can speak to a counsellor on line

The Trust acknowledges the trade unions that represent its employees and seeks to consult appropriately on all matters
aftecting employment by the Trust

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

Woodbridge Trust gives full and fair consideration to all stakeholders we deal with from suppliers and customers to the
wider community. Relationships with suppliers are entered into based upon not only the financial implications for the
Trust but also the quality aspects to ensure that as a Trust we always seek value for money. Relationships are harboured
through regular contact and we have an approved supplier list which is reviewed at least annually. Relationships with
other stakeholders including other educational institutions, Local Authority, Healthcare providers are harboured and
maintained to ensure maximum benefit to both parties and ultimately to ensure the successful outcomes for all our
students.

Auditor
In so far as the Trustees are aware
« There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is aware
« The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees' Repont, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of Trustees, as the company
directors, on 16 December 2022 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

Hecdtes B SecsH— /(//7(0/5

Heather Scott Pip Hoyes
Chair of Trustees Trustes
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Woodbridge Trust
Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees we acknowledge our overall responsibility for ensuring that Woodbridge Trust has an effective and
appropriate system of control covering all aspects of the Trust's business activities. Such systems are designed to
manage and mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and that
these are in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreements between
Woodbridge Trust and the Secretary of State for Educatton. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for reporting
to the Board any material weakness or breakdowns in internal control.

Trustees are well trained and are committed to attending training that enhances understanding of their responsibilities
and legal function. This equips them with the knowledge to provide both challenge and support for the Senior Leadership
Teams at all of the academies in the Trust. The Scheme of Delegation balances the need for control with empowering
Academy and senior leaders to be accountable for the performance of the academy / area they manage.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’'s Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement
of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The board has formally met 3 times during the period ending 31 August 2022, Attendance
during the year, be this physically in person or remotely at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee / Member Meetings Attended Out of a possible
Heather Scott (Chair of Trustees / Member) 3 ] 3
Dr Pip Hoyes (Vice Chair of Trustees) 2 3
Ashley Mason 3 3
Dr Tony Birch 2 3
Lindsay Bradbury 1 3
Richard Ikin 0 3
Gail Scholes 2 3
Anika Keys 1 3
Janet Woods 0 3
Tony Purcell 3 3

The Board is supported by a Govermance Support Officer, who also provides advice and guidance. The size, structure
and composition of the Board and Committees is constantly reviewed to ensure that the governance remains robust
and challenging.

The board oversees all Trust activities from Pupil attainment, progress and attendance to financial management, viability
and stability of the Trust, the future growth of the Trust, along with key personnel appointments.

The board has agreed a scheme of delegation in order that decision making is devolved to the desired operational or
strategic level.

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Trustees. The main purpose of the Committee is to advise the
Board of Trustees on the Trust's assurance framework in line with the Academies Financial Handbook, Articles of
Association and Funding Agreements, supporting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities with regard to financial and
business risk management together with the wider internal control framework of the Trust. Meetings of the Committee
will be held at least 3 times during the year. The work of the committee continues to develop, focused by clear terms of
reference, providing resilience to the Boards reporting mechanisms.
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Governance Statement {continued)

Attendance at meetings during the period ended 31 August 2022 was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Dr Pip Hoyes (Chair) 2 3
Ashley Mason 3 3
Dr Tony Birch 2 3
Gail Scholes 1 2
Janet Woods 0 3

The Finance, HR and Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. The Committee is
responsible to the Board of Trustees for Financial, HR and Health and Safety matters, this includes but is not limited to
the reviewing the budgets, reviewing of policies relating to these areas, pay review, grievances, disciplinary, ensuring
submission of key returns by the CFQO to the ESFA/DFE. The committee deal with other financial or audit matters as
may from time to time be referred to the committee for consideration.

Attendance at meetings during the period ending 31 August 2022 is as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Richard Ikin (Chair) 2 2
Lindsay Bradbury 2 2
Heather Scott 2 2
Anika Keys 1 2
Tony Purcell 2 2

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy Trust delivers good
value for money in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy Trust's use of its resources have provided good value for money
during each academic year and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved. The
accounting officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by;

+ Investing in a robust financial accounting system capable of dealing with the demands and complexities of Trust
accounting, which has reduced processing and manipulation time of the financials increasing efficiencies.

e Growing the multi academy Trust to achieve financial opportunities, in particular in the case of Ladywood
Outreach
Conducted a review of Other Income sources both for educational resources and afterschool lettings

* Whole scale review of all cost centres and contracts and retendering where appropriate.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in Woodbridge Trust for the period ending 31 August 2022 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that
there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy Trust's significant risks that
has been in place for the period ending 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. The process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.
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Governance Statement (continued)

The Risk and Control Framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes;

Establishment of an effective and consistent assurance framework for all committees
Comprehensive budget and monitoring systems with an annual budget and monthly periodic financial reports
which are reviewed by the Board of Trustees
¢ Regular review by the Board, Audit committee and Finance, HR and Premises committee of reports which
indicate financial performance against forecasts.
¢ Creating a consistency of approach in key systems and processes across the Trust to mitigate risk of local
variance
Clearly defined purchasing guidelines
Delegation of authority and segregation of duties
Internal audit reviews of business processes and risk areas undertaken by Haines Watts. This covered the
following area;
o Review of income systems and controls
Review of expenditure systems and contfrols
Review of the Payroll Systems and controls surrounding them
Review of Governance and Compliance
Review of Banking systems and controls
Any issues identified have been allocated a timescale for completion and will be reviewed by the Audit
committee and the Board of Trustees.

00 00

On a termly basis, the Internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the audit committee on the operation of
the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities. The Internai Auditor
prepares a summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and
conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess progress.

Review of Effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of
intarnal control, During the year, the review has been informed by:

the work of the Audit Committee

the work of the external auditor

the work of the internal auditor

the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management self-
assessment tool

« the work of executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance
of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the resuits of their review of the system of internal control
by the Audit Committee and a plan to address minor weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of systems is in
place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 16 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Hemtren € S c ot — eMeRr e

Heather Scott Sally McFarlane
Chair of Trustees Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer

1A I Pnna



Woodbridge Trust
Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Woodbridge Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy Trust Board of
Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance
with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the academy Trust and the
Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the
Academies Financial Handbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
funds by the academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy
Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2021.

| confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance discovered to date

have been notified to the board of trustees and ESFA. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement,
these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

¢ Financial issues - £1,350
¢ Non financial issues — none

During the year, the academy trust has entered into transactions with a related party which were not declared to the
ESFA ahead of the transactions occurring in line with section 5.41 of the Academy Trust Handbook.

0.2 (1

Sally McFarlane
Accounting Officer

16 December 2022
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Woodbridge Trust
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The Trustees, who are responsible for governance of Woodbridge Trust, are directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. They are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in
accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} and applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income
and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

« observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022
* make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

= state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and
other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also
responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on

the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on 16 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

}"&__‘db;s ED‘SCEQ*_‘

Heather Scott
Chair of Trustees
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Woodbridge Trust
Independent Auditor'’s Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Woodbridge
Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Woodbridge Trust ("the Academy Trust”) for the year ended 31 August
2022, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland'.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's company's affairs as at 31 August 2022
and its application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

* have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts
Direction 2021 to 2022.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
avidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of at least twelve months from when the original financial statements were authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information (covers the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees’ Report and Strategic
Report and the Governance Statement)

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatoment of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Trustees’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Trustees’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Woodbridge Trust
Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Woodbridge
Trust (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,; or
» certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities [set out on page 16], the Trustees are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the company to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the
more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding
irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion,
omission or misrepresentation.

» The engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

» We identified the laws and regulations applicable to the trust through discussions with directors and other
management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the academies sector;

s We focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the
financial statements or the operations of the trust, including the Companies Act 20086, taxation legislation and
data protection, anti-bribery, employment, environmental, and health and safety legisiation;

» We assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries
of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

» |dentified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert
to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the trust's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining an
understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

s  Making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge
of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

s Considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.
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Woodbridge Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Woodbridge
Trust (continued)
To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

e Performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
Tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

o Assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates were indicative
of potential bias; and
e Investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which
included, but were not limited to:

Agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

Reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance

Enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

Reviewing correspondence with HMIRC

Identify and test journal entries, in particular any journal entries posting with unusual account combinations

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust’s Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust'’s trustees those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy Trust and its Trustees, as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

. /.

Anna/ -é-nnett' (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Xeinadin Audit, Statutory Auditor

8" Floor Becket House
36 Old Jewry

London

EC2R 8DD
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Woodbridge Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Woodbridge Trust and the
Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 31 May 2022 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 21, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received
by Woodbridge Trust during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Woodbridge Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to Woodbridge Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required
to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than Woodbridge Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion
we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Governing Body's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Board of Trustee's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 28 September 2018 and the Academies Financial Handbook extant from 1
September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for.this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 22. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out
our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure dishursed and income received during the year from
1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
ehgagement |etter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Cur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

¢ We have confirmed that the activities conform to the Academy Trust's framework of authorities. As identified by
review of minutes, management accounts, discussion with the accounting officer and other key management
personnel.

* We have carried out analytical review as part of the consideration of whether general activities of the Academy
Trust are within the Academy Trust's framework of authorities.

¢ We have considered the evidence supporting the accounting officer's statement of regularity, propriety and
compliance and have evaluated the general control environment of the Academy Trust and extended the
procedures required for the financial statement to include regularity.

e We have assessed and tested a sample of specific control activities over regularity of a particular activity. In
performing sample testing of expenditure, we have considered whether the activity is permissible within the
Academy Trust's framework of authorities. We confirm that each item tested has been appropriately authorised
in accordance with the Academy Trust's delegated authorities and that the internal delegations have been
approved by the Trust Board and conform to the limits set by the Department for Education.
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Woodbridge Trust
Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Woodbridge Trust and the
Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

e Formal representations have been obtained from the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer acknowledging
their responsibilities including disclosing all non-compliance with laws and regulations specific to the authorising
framework, access to accounting records, provision of information and explanations and other matters where
direct evidence is not available.

e |n performing sample testing of expenditure, we have reviewed against specific terms of grant funding within the
funding agreement. We have reviewed the list of suppliers and have considered whether supplies are from
related parties and have reviewed minutes for evidence of declaration of interests, and whether or not there was
involvement in the decision to order from this supplier.

e We have performed sample testing of other income and tested whether activities are permitted with the Academy
Trust's charitable objects.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, except for the matters listed below nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in
all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year ended 31 August 2022 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

e During the year, the academy trust has entered into transactions with a related party which were not declared
to the ESFA ahead of the transactions occurring in line with section 5.41 of the Academies Trust Handbook.

Xoweds..

Reporting Accountant

Xeinadin Audit Limited
Chartered Accountants

8th Fioor Becket House
36 Old Jewry

London

EC2R 8DD
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Woodbridge Trust

Statement of Financial Activities
for the year ending 31 August 2022
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants

Transfer from local authority on conversion

Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations
Other trading activities
Investments

Total
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational operations
Total
Net income / {expenditure)
Transfers batween funds
Other recognised gains / (losses):

Actuarial (losses) 7 gains on defined
benefit pension schemes

Gains / losses on revaluation of fixed assets

Net movement in funds

Reconclliation of funds

Total funds brought forward at 1 September 2021

Total funds carried forward
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) ) Restricted

Unrestricted nr‘;efg‘c‘zd o ns'.“s::""‘:d Fixed Asset Total 2021/2022
Funds eneral Fungs ansion Funds Funds
Nole

2 7,040 1,588 2,083,060 2,091,688
3 . 9823422 . 9,523,422
4 480,685 352,086 ) 833,671
5 180 ) 180
487,905 9,877,997 - 2,083,060 12,448,962
7 106,563 9,898,708 1451000 502,811 11,959,083
106,563 9,898,708 1.451.000 502,811 11,959,083
381,341 (20,711)  (1.451,000) 1,580,249 489,879
- (126797 126,797 .
24 ; . 9,641,000 ; 9,641,000
381,341 (147.508) 3,190,000 1,707,046 10,130,870
814,379 682640  (8,209,000) 21,585,585 14,873,604
1.195.720 535132 (19,000) 23,202,631 25,004,483




Woodbridge Trust

Statement of Financial Activities
for the year ending 31 August 2021

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants

Transfer from local authority on conversion

Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations

Other trading activities

Teaching School

Investments

Total
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational operations
Teaching School
Total
Net income / (expenditure)
Transfers between funds
Cther recognised gains / {losses):

Actuarial {losses) / gains on defined
benefit pension schemes

Gains / losses on ravaluation of fixed assels

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward at 1 September 2020

Total funds carried forward
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. . Restricted
Unrestricted R"f':_{‘c'zd o ns;’::fg"’;:: Fixed Asset Total 2020/2021

Funds neral Funds e u Funds

Note

2 7,228 285 1,086,909 1,004,422
3 - 8721182 ; 8,721,152
4 378,743 205,252 - 673,995
26 68,330 40,000 : 108,330
5 204 - 204
454,505 9,056,689 - 1,086,909 10,598,103
7 54819 6622759 874,000 53617 9,605,195
28 49,829 40,000 - 89,328
104,648 6,662,759 374,000 53617 9,695,024
349,857 393,930 (874.000) 1,033,292 903,079
24 ) . {1,450,000) . {1,450,000)
; : - {1.155.791) {1,155,791)
349,857 303.030  (2,324.000)  (122.499) (1,702,712)
464,522 288710  (5885,000) 21,708,084 16,576,316
814,379 662,640 (8,209,000) 21,585,585 14,873,604




Woodbridge Trust

Balance Sheet
as at 31 August 2022

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total assets

Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds

. Fixed asset fund

. Restricted income fund

. Pension raserve
Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds
Total funds

Notes

12

13

14

15

24

16
16

16

16

Company Number 11538176

31-Aug-22 31-Aug-21
£ £
23,070,759 21,615,678
934,038 224,505
1,434,597 1,483,039
2,368,635 1,707,544
(415,912) (240,620)
1,952,723 1,466,924
25,023,482 23,082,602
25,023,482 23,082,602
{19,000) (8,209,000)
25,004,482 14,873,602
23,292,631 21,585,584
535,131 682,640
(19,000) (8,209,000)
23,808,762 14,059,223
1,195,720 814,379
25,004,482 14,873,602

The financial statements on pages 21 to 48 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 16 December

2022 and are signed on their behalf by:

J_Ec ey T VR e ({{

Heather Scott

Chair of Trustees
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Pip Hoyes

Trustee



Woodbridge Trust

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ending 31 August 2021

Notes 2022 2021
£000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities 20 (173,790) 572,535
Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust - -
Cash flows from investing activities 20 125,347 163,965
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period {48,442) 736,500
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 1,483,040 746,540
Cash and cash equivalents at the 31 August 22 1,434,597 1,483,040
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022

1 Statement of Accounting Policles

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basls of Preparation

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have baen prepared under
the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland {FRS102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland
(FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FR5102)}. the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by EFA, the Charities Act
2011 and the Companies Act 2008,

The Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102

Golng Concaem

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material unceriainties
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abiity of the company to continue as a going concem.
The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the
financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for tha foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a
going concem, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {(continued}
Incoma

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entittement to the funds, the recaipt is probable and the
amount can be maasured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received
for apecific purposas but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.
Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional
entilement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the
performance-related conditions are met. Where entilement occurs before income is received, the income is
accrued,

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Aclivities in the year for which itis
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a lability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entilement and are not defared over the life of the asset on which they
are expendad. Unspant amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed assel fund.

Sponsorship Income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable {where there are no performance-related conditions), where
the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis {(where there are no performance-retated conditions) where the
receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other Income

Other income, including the hire of facilibes, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services,

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs
of sale, If it is practical 10 assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other trading
activities’. Upon aate, the value of the stock is charged against 'Income from other trading activities’ and the
proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due
to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial staternents until they are sold. This income
is recognised within ‘Income from other trading actvities’,

Donated fixed assets

Whera the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless itis impractical to measure this reliably,
in which case tha cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations
and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit 1o a third party, itis
probable that a transfer of economic banefits will be required in setiement and the amount of the obligation can be
measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs
and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity
are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not
attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistant with the use of resources.
Central staff cosls are allocated on the basis of ime spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's
use.

Expenditure on Raising Funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes
costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

» Charitable Activities

These are cests incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs ralating
to the governance of the academy trust apportioned fo charitable actvities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT
Tangible Fixed Assels

Assets costing £3,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any
provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed asssts have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the
private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected usaful economic life.
Where thera are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are
credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assats is charged directly to the restricled fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unresiricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged
to the unrestricted fund.

Depraciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freshold and, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each
asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful Iife, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 50 - 125 years
Plant and Machinery 10 - 15 years
Fumiture i 5+ 10 years
Motor Vehicies 5- 10 years
Computer equipment 3-5years

Assels in the course of construction are included at cost. Dapreciation on these assets is not charged until they are brought
into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value

of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable
amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment lossas are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

Llabllitles

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance shest date as a result of a past event, it is probable that
a transfer of economic benefit will be required in setfement, and the amount of the setiement can be estimated reliably.
Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settie the debt or the amount it has
raceived as advanced payments for the goods of services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at tha reporting date as a result of a past event which it
is probabie will resutt in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured af the bast astimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and
similar charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals under oparaling leases ara charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financlal Instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and liabilities of the
academy lrust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other deblors are basic financial instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 3.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost as detailed in note 14. Taxation and social security are not included in financial instruments disclosure definition,
Defarred income is not deemed o be a financial liability, as the cash setlement has already taken place and there is no
obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charity’s wholly owned
subsiduary are held at face value less any impairement.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 8 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore
it meats the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by part 11, chapler 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such incorne or gains are applied exclusively to charilable purposes.

Pensions Benesfils

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme ('TPS’) and the
Local Government Pension Schems {LGPS"). These are defined benefit schames and the assets are held separately from
those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’
working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and
future pensionable payroll, The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial
valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in the notes to the financial statements, the TPS is a multi-
employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is thersfore
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the pericd to which
they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held saparately from those of the academy trust in separate trustee
administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retum on a high quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabiliies. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and
are updated at each balance shest date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the
costs of scheme intreductions, benefit changes, setdements and curtailments. They are included as pan of staff cosls as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and
comprisas the interest cost on the dafined banafit obligation and interest incorme on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit
obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets
is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immadiately in other recognised gains and losses.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of
the academy trust at the discretion of the trustses.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied 1o specific capilal purposes imposed by funders where
the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds compvrise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/doncr and
include grants from the Education & Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of Judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiance and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Gritical accounting estimates and assumplions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resutting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefil liability depends on a number of factors that
are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disciosed in note 25, will
impact the carrying amount of the pensions liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects resutts from the
latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2022 Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would
impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 {continued)

2 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds  2021/2022 202012021

£ £ £ £
Educational trips and visits 1,588 1,588 1,995
Donated Fixed Assels 9,350 9,350 20,682
Capital Grants - 2,073,710 2,073,710 1,066,227
Donations 7.040 7.040 5,518
7,040 2084848 2091688 1,094,422

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's Educational Operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds  2021/2022 2020/2021

£ £ £ £

DfE | EFA grants

. General Annual Grant (GAG) - 3,059,474 3,059,474 3,060,000
. Start Up Grants - - - .
. Other DFE/EFA granis - 264,921 264,921 227,598
- 3,324,395 3,324,395 3,287,596

Other Government grants
. Local authority grants - 6,164 863 6,164,863 5,308,516
Special educational projects - - . .

COVID-19 additional funding (DFE/ESFA)
Cateh-up Premium 34,184 34,164 88,132
Other DFE/ESFA COVID-19 funding . . 17,180

COVID-19 additional funding {(non-DFE/ESFA)

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant - - 19,728
- 6,199,027 6,199,027 5,433,556
Other income from the acadamy trust's educational ) } } R
operations

- 9,523,422 9,523,422 8,721,152

The academy received £34k of funding for catch-up premium.

4 Other Trading activitiea
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 202172022 2020/2021
£ £ E £
Hire of facilities 26,749 - 26,749 11,947
Catering Income 36,602 - 36,8602 25,992
Other Income 417,334 352,988 770,321 636,056
480,685 352,986 §33,671 573,995
5 Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2021/2022 2020/2021
£ £ £ £

Short term deposits 180 - 180 204
180 - 180 204
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Woodbridge Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending

31 August 2022 (continued)

6 Expenditure

Acadery's educational operations:
. Direct costs
. Alocated support costs

Teaching School
. Allocated support costs

Net income/{expenditure) for the period includes:

Operating lease renlals
Depreciation

Feas payabie 1o auditor for:
- audit

- other servicas
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Non Pay Expenditure

Total Total
Staff Costs  Premises Other  2021/2022 2020/2021
£ £ £ £ £
7,593,586 330,455 7,924,081 7,030,722
2,176,013 662,645 1,198.344 4,035,002 2,574,473
- - 89,829
9,769,589 662,645 1,526,838 14,959,083 9,695,024

Total Total
202172022 202002021
29.428 21,266
502.811 53,604
14,880 13,680

1,370 1,920




Woodbridge Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending

31 August 2022 (continued)

7 Charitable Activities

Direct costs — educational operations

Support costs — educational operations

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Depreciation
Technology costs
Premises coslts
Other support costs
Govemance costs
Total support costs
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Total Total
2021/2022 2020/2021
£ £
7,924,081 7,030,722
4,035,002 2,574,473
11,959,083 9,605,195
Educational Total Total
operations 2021/2022  2020/2021
£ £ £
2,176,013 2,176,013 1,521,057
502,824 502,824 53,604
100,031 100,031 66,600
662,645 662,645 485,028
568,462 568,462 418,227
25,027 25,027 29,957
4,035,002 4,035,002 2,574,473




Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

8 Staff
a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the pericd were: Total Total
2021/2022  2020/2021
£ £

Wages and salaries 6455826 5,714,751

Social security costs 586,353 508,049

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 2648407 1,976,571
9,690,586 8,199,371

Supply staff costs 106,904 164,075

9,797,490 8,363,446

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the period was as follows;
2021/2022 2020/2021

No. No.
Teachers 75 63
Administration and support 201 185
Management 3 3
279 251
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Woodbridge Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

8 Staff (continued)
¢ Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employse benefits (excluding employer pension costs} exceeded £60,000
was:

2021/2022 2020/2021

No. No.
£60,001 - £70,000 L 2
£70,001 - £80,000 3 3
£80,001 - £90,000 1 2
£90,001 - £100,000 3 -
£100,001 - £110,000 - -
£110,001 - £120,000 - 1

d Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the
academy trust was £280,855 (2020/2021: £384, 352)
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

9 Central Services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

= Governance

® Leadership Support

* Financial Management

= Facilities Management

® School improvement services
* Software

® Legal and professional fees

The academy trust charged for these services based upon time apportionment of each
academy. The actual amounts charges during the period ended 31 August 2022 were as

follows:
Total Total
2021/2022  2020/2021
£ £
Ladywood School, Teaching Schoo! and Qutreach 246,012 218,075
Firwood High School 205,138 217,665

451,151 435,740

38 | Page



Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

10 Related Party Transactions - Trustees’ Remuneration and Expenses

No trustees have been paid remuneration or have received other benefits from an employment with the academy
trust.

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 25

11 Trustees’ and Officers’ Insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement {(RPA), an alternative to
insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme prolects trustees and officers from
claims arising from negligent acts, errors or ommissiens occuring whilst on Academy business, and provides cover up
1o £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustee and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the
RPA schemae.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

12 Tanglble Fixed Assets
Leasehold

Furniture and . . Assets under
I;:l?i i:;csl Fixtures IT Equipment Motor Vehicles B — Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
Cost at 1 September 2021 20,360,000 362,160 79,277 13,245 897,434 21,712,116
Transfer - - - - - -
Additions 2,542,442 92,356 35,376 - (712,281) 1,957,893
Disposals - - - - -
At 31 August 2022 22,902,442 454 516 114,653 13,245 185,154 23,670,009
Depreciation
At 1 September 2021 0 64,328 24,381 7,729 - 96,438
Revaluation -
Charged in year 433,251 42,633 24,278 2,649 - 502,811
Disposals - - - -
At 31 August 2022 433,252 106,961 48,658 10,378 - 599,250
Net book values
Al 31 August 2021 20,360,000 207,832 54,896 5516 897,434 21,615,678
At 31 August 2022 22,469,190 347,554 65,995 2,867 185,154 23,070,759

During the year the Academies within the Trust received donated assets from the DFE in the form of Laptops and iPads
totalling £9,350. In total the Trust received 11 Laptops and 25 iPads for the Students on role in the various settings.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 (continued)

13 Debtors

31-Aug-22 31-Aug-21

£ £
Trade debtors 100,216 143,646
VAT recoverable 253,348 54,834
Other debtors - -
Prepayments and accrued income 580,474 26,025
934,037 224,505
Accrued Income 31-Aug-22 31-Aug-21

£ £
Income accrued in the period 553,602 25,237

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was owed £97k funds relating to sickness insurance,
£267k in relation to additional place funding from the local authority and £161k in relation to CIF
funding
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14 Creditors: Amounts Falling due within one year

31-Aug-22 31-Aug-21
£ £
Trade creditors 233,866 162,484
Other taxation and social security -
Other creditors 11,013
Accruals and deferred income 181,242 67,123
415,912 240,620
Deferred income 31-Aug-22 31-Aug-21
£ £
Resources deferred in the period 28,933
At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding £9k funds in advance for UIFSM relating to
2022/2023.
15 Creditors: Amounts Falling due after more than one year
31-Aug-22 31-Aug-21
£ £

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income
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16 Funds

Restricted peneral funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium
Catch-up premium

Other DFE / ESFA COVID-19 funding
Coronavirus Job Retention

Other DFE { ESFA Grants

Other income & Teaching School

Restricted fixed asset funds

Transfer on conversion
DIE/EFA capital grants
Other Capital Grants

Capital expenditure from GAG

Restricted Pansion funds

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds
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Balance at 1

Incoming Resources Balance at 31
September Gains, losses

2024 resources Expended and transfers August 2022

£ £ £ £ £
- 3,059,474 (3,059,474} - -
37,219 183,962 (161.471) - 59,712
73,742 34,164 {18,779) - 89,127
1417 100,697 (102,114) - 0
570,261 6,499,608 (6,558,870} {126,797} 386,202
682,640 9,877,997 {9,898,708) {126,797} ‘535,131
20,396,891 (502.811) - 19,894,080
110,647 428,457 - 549,104
1,078,047 1,644,603 2,722,650
. - - 126,797 126,797
21,585,585 2,083,060 {502.811) 126,797 23,292,631
{8,209,000) {1.451,000} 9,641,000 {19,000)
{8,209,000) - (1,451,000} 9,641,000 {19,000)
14,059,225 11,961,057  (11,852,520) 9,641,000 23,808,762
814,379 487,905 {106,563) - 1,195,720
14,873,604 12,448,962  (11,959,083) 9,641,000 25,004,482
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31 August 2022 {continued)

16 Funds {continued)

Comparative information in respect of the precading 12 month paricd:

aas?:t:’m:e:' Incoming Resources Balance at 31
2020 Tesources Expended Gains, losses August 2021
and transfers
£ £ £ £ £

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant {(GAG) 71,733 3,060,000 {3.131,733) - -
Pupil Pramium {9.411) 153,206 {108,576) - ar219
Catch-up premium - 88,132 (14,390) - 73,742
Other DFE / ESFA COVID-19 funding - 17,180 (17.180) e o
Coronavirus Job Retention - 19,728 (19,728) - -
Other DFE / ESFA Grants - 74,390 (72,973) - 1,417
Other income 224,887 5,604,053 {5,260,179) - 568,761
Teaching School 1,500 40,000 {40,000) = 1,500
288,710 9,056,689 (8.662,759) = 682,640

Restricted fixed asset funds

Transfer on conversion 21,565,629 (12,948) (1.155,791) 20,396,880
DIE/EFA capital grants 87,543 47,569 {24,865) - 110,647
Other Capital Grants 54,911 1,038,939 (15.804) 1,078,047
Capital expenditure from GAG - - - - -
21,708,083 1,086,808 (53.817) 1,155,791} 21,585,584

Restricted Pension funds
Pension reserve {5.885,000) (874,000) {1,450,000) {8,209,000)
(5,885,000) - (874,000) {1,450,000) (8,209,000}
Total restricted funds 16,111,793 10,143,507 {9,5980,376) (2,605,791) 14,059,223
Total unrestricted funds 484,522 454,505 {104,648) - 814,379
Total funds 16,576,315 10,598,102 {9,695,024) {2,605,791) 14,873,602

Unsestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the academy trust at
the discretion of the trustees

Restricled fixed asset funds are resources which are lo be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where 1he asset acquired or
created is held for a specific purposa.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricied funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder / donor and include grants from the
Education & Skills Funding Agency / Depariment for Education.
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16 Funds (continued)

Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows: Total Total

2022 2024

£ £

Ladywood School and Oulrsach 1,040,002 872,038
Firwood High School 686,142 620,143
Central Services 4,707 4,838
Total before fixed assets and pension resernve 1,730,851 1,497,018
Restricied fixed asset fund 23,292,631 21,585,585
Pension reserve {19,000) (8,209,000)
Total 25,004,482 14,873,604
Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and
Educational Other Costs
Support Stalf  Other Support  Educational {excluding Total Total
Costs Staff Costs Supplies Depreciation) 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Ladywood School, Teaching Scheol and Outreach 3973818 266,497 114,369 708,581 5,081,265 4,438,822
Firwood High School 3,550,369 203,652 77,946 699 466 4,531,433 3,802,845
Central services 209,873 180,563 2,742 57,973 431,151 435,756
Academy Trust 7,734,060 630,712 195,057 1,464,020 10,043,843 8,767,423
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17 Analysis of Net Assets betwaen Funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 ame represented by:

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Fixed Assot
Funds Gensral Funds Peansion Funds Funds Total Funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - 23,070,759 23,070,759
Current assets 1,195,720 951,044 221,871 2,368,635
Current liabilities - (415,912} - {415,912)
Non-current liabilites - - -
Pension scheme liability - - (19,000} - {19,000)
Total net assets 1,185,720 535,132 {19,000} 23,292,631 25,004,482
Comparative information in respact of the preceding 12 month period is as follows:
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Fixed Assel
Funds General Funds Pension Funds Funds Total Funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - 21,815678 21615673
Current assets 814,379 923,259 (30,095} 1,707,544
Current liabilities - {240,620) - (240,620)
Non-current liabilities - - -
Pension scheme liability - - {8.209,000) - {8,209,000)
Total not assets 814,379 682,640 (8,209,000) 21,585,585 14,873,602
18 Capital Commitments
2022 2021
£ £
Conftracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 241,846 1608617

19 Commitments under operating leases

Operating Leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the Academy’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancskable operating leases was:

2022 2021
£ E
Amounts due within one year 35,660 23,229
Amounts due between one and five years 54,203 18,785
Amounts due after five years - -
89,953 62,014
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20 Reconciliation of Net Income/{expenditure} to Net

21

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement
of financial activities)

Adjusted for:

Depreciation charges {note 12)

Capital grants from DIE and other capital income

Interest receivable (note 5)

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 24)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 24)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors

Increasef(decrease) in creditors

Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust

Inherited assets on conversion

Net cash provided by / {used in) Operating Actlvities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE/EFA and Others

Net cash provided by / (used In) investing activities

22 Analysis cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank
Notice deposits (less than 3 months)
Total cash and cash equivalents
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2022 2021
£ £
489,879 903,079
502,814 53,616
{2,083,060) (1,086,909)
{180) (204)
1,308,000 769,000
145,000 105,000
(709,532) 30,611
175,293 {201,858)
(173,790) 572,535
2022 2021
£ £
180 204
(1,857.893) {923,148}
2,083,060 1,086,908
125,347 163,065

At 31 August

At 31 August

2022 2021
£ £
1,434,597 1,483,039
1,434,597 1,483,039




Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2022 {continuad)

23 Analysls of changes in net debt

Acquisition /

At 1 September disposalof  New Financs Other non- At 3 August
2021 Cashf bsidiaries lsass cash changes 2022

£ £ 3 £ £ £
Cash 1,483,040 (48,444} o a 1,434,896
Cash equivalents o o - . . .
Overdraft faciity repayable on demand - 5 5 - - .
1,483,040 48,444) - 8 = 1,434,506
Loans falling due within one year - = 3 . _ .
Loans falling due after more than one year - o o N N .
Finance lease obligations - o a . R .
Lot 1,483.040 (45.444) - - - 1,434,508
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24 Members'® Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases o be a member.
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25 Pension and Simlilar Obligations

The academy trust's employses belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Govemnment Pension Scheme {LGPS)
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit pansion schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2019,

There were no cutstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govemed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pensicn benefits are
paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumplions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation
report was published by the Department for Education on § March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and
subseguent consultation are:

» employer contribution rates sel at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including & 0.08% administration levy)

» tolal scheme fiabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to
the effective date of £218,100 million, and nofional assets (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of
£22,000 million

« the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment retumn. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPI. Assumed real rate of retum is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earning. The rate of real eamnings growth is assumed 1o be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including
earnings growth is 4.45%,

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024

The pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £658,427, (2021 £617,346)

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website,
Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The

academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The
academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.
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25 Pension and Simllar Obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Schema

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds.

The total contribution made for the period ended 31 August 2022 was £842,000, of which employer's
contributions tolalled £656,000 (2021 £595,000) and employees’ contributions totalled £186,000 (2021
£170,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20.8 per cent for employers and between
5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of academy closure, outslanding Loca!l Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met
by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal Actuarlal Assumptiona At 31 August At 31 August
2022 2021

Rate of increase in salaries - Ladywood 3.80% 3.15%

Rate of increase in salaries - Firwood 3.80% 3.25%

Rate of increase for pensions in paymentinflation 3.05% 2.90%

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.25% 1.65%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 85 are:

At 31 August At 31 August

2022 2021
Retliring today
Males 20.3 20.5
Females 232 231
Retiring in 20 years
Males 21.8 220
Females 251 25
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25 Pension and Simllar Obligations {continued)
The academy's share of the assets in the scheme were:

2022 2021

£ £
Equities 7,505,000 6,780,000
Government bonds 1,523,000 1,595,000
Property 979,000 698,000
Cash and other liquid assets 870,000 897,000
Total market value of assets 10,877,000 9,970,000

The actual retum on schame assets was a loss £32,000 (2021 - gain £1,453,000)

Amounts recognised In the statement of financial activities

2022 2021

£ £
Current service cost {1,283,000) (1,364,000)
Past service cost {23,000) -
Interest Income 171,000 137,000
Interest Cost {316,000) (242,000}
Total operating charge ~ {1,451,000) {1,469,000)

Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2022 2021
£ E

At start of the period 18,180,000 13,567,000
Upon conversion
Current service cost 1,939,000 1,364,000
Past service cost 23,000 -
Interest cost 318,000 242,000
Employee contributions 186,000 170,000
Actuarial {gain)loss (9,961,000) 3,055,000
FRS 102 adjustment 315,000 -
Benefits paid (75,000} {66,000)
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements {27,000} {152,000)
At 31 August 10,896,000 18,180,000
Changes In the falr value of academy’s share of scheme assets:

2022 20214

£ £

At start of the period 9,971,000 7,682,000
Upon conversion
Interest income 171,000 137,000
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined
pension liability) {32,000) 1,453,000
Actuarial gain/{loss) - -
Employer contributions 656,000 595,000
Employee contributions 166,000 170,000
Benefits paid (75,000) (66,000)
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and setdements - -
At 31 August 10,877,000 9,971,000

As at 31 August 2022, the defined benefit pension scheme has an excess of assels over liabilities of
£315,000 for Ladywood. The academy trust has not received any formal notification of surplus, either
by reduced contributions or refunds. Therefore, this does not constitute an asset under FRS 102 and
a nit balance is included for this school in the balance sheet at 31 August 2022,
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26 Related Party Transactions

Owing 1o the nature of the academy trust and the compaosition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisalions, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trust has
an interest, All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance
with the trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures. The following related party
transaction took place in the period of account.

Woodbridge College - a company in which H Scott (trustee of the trust) is a director

® The trust administered the strategic management of the College and all procurement for the College was
sourced via the trust. For the period to the 31 August 2022 the total disbursements made to the College
totalled £561,851 (2021 - £416,928), of which £55,109 was outstanding at 31 August 2022 (2021 -
£38,826), which has now been paid.

Birch Education Ltd - a company in which T Birch (trustee of the trust) is a director
s Birch Education Ltd provided peer coaching development sessions to Woodbridge Trust during the year.

During the year the Trust paid £1,350 for peer coaching development sessions (2021:£nil). At the
balance shett date the amount due to Birch Education Limited was Enil (2021: £nil).
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